
 1 October 27, 2014

                                                       APPROVED

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE
NEW LENOX BOARD OF TRUSTEES

New Lenox Village Hall, 
One Veterans Parkway

Monday October 27, 2014
   #14-28

CALL TO ORDER
The Regular Meeting of the New Lenox Village Board of Trustees was called to order 
at 7:03 p.m. by Mayor Baldermann in the Council Chambers of the New Lenox Village 
Hall.

ROLL CALL
Upon Roll Call by the Clerk, the following members of the corporate authorities 
answered “Here” or “Present”:

Trustees Butterfield, Dye, Bowden, Tuminello, Madsen and Mayor Baldermann

ABSENT - Trustee Smith

QUORUM
There being a sufficient number of members of the corporate authorities in attendance to 
constitute a quorum, the meeting was declared in order.

OTHER OFFICIALS IN ATTENDANCE
Also in attendance were the Village Administrator Kurt Carroll, Village Clerk Laura 
Ruhl, Finance Director Kim Auchstetter, Community Development Director/Assistant 
Administrator Robin Ellis, Public Works Director Brian Williams, Village Engineer 
Will Nash, Building and Zoning Administrator Warren Rendleman, and Attorney Chris 
Spesia.

INTRODUCTION – Fire Chief Steve Engledow
Fire Chief Steve Engledow introduced himself to the Mayor, Village Board and Staff. He 
gave a brief background of his career.

PROCLAMATION – Military Order of the Purple Heart 
Mayor Baldermann explained that this item was not on the agenda but since there will 
be no action taken and the representatives of the Purple Heart Organization were able to 
make the meeting he asked the Board to join him in presenting the Purple Heart with a 
proclamation. At this time Mayor Baldermann read the proclamation aloud. He presented 
the proclamation to the representatives who at that time presented the Village of New 
Lenox with flag and a donation to the Veteran’s Memorial restoration.

CONSENT AGENDA
Motion to approve the 16 items on Consent Agenda #14-28 was made by Trustee 
Bowden and seconded by Trustee Dye



 2 October 27, 2014

A  - Minutes of the Regular Meeting – September 23, 2014
B  - Ordinance #2451 Authorizing Execution of Annexation Agreement – 1940 

Clearing Court – 2nd Read
C  - Ordinance #2452 Annexing Certain Territory – 1940 Clearing Court – 2nd Read
D  - Ordinance #2453 Rezoning Newly Annexed Territory – 1940 Clearing Court -2nd 

Read
E  - Resolution #14-22 Authorizing Council Chamber s Intergovernmental Agreement 

– IWCC - 2015
F  - Surety Release – Starcon
G  -  Ordinance #2454 Authorizing the Sale of by Public Auction of Personal Property 

owned by the Village of New Lenox
H  - Approval of Web Service Agreement – D & T Ventures – E-Billing and Online 

Payments
I  - Resolution #14-23 adopting a Policy for the Inclusion of Contribution Language 

in All Annexation Agreements and Determining Contributions up through 
December 31, 2015

J  - Resolution #14-24 Establishing Policies and Procedures for Snow and Ice 
Removal

K  - Resolution #14-25 Authorizing Execution of an Amendment and Termination of 
Economic Incentive Agreement with HGWA, Inc. – Buffalo Wild Wings

L  - Ordinance #2455 Amending Chapter 18 of the Municipal Code – Building Codes 
– 2nsd Read

M  - Resolution #14-26 Authorizing the Execution of an Amended Intergovernmental 
Agreement Between the New Lenox Fire District and the Village for the 
Enforcement of Fire and Safety Regulations

N  - Approval of Contract – BSI On-Line – Backflow Record Keeping Services
O  - Ordinance #2456 Creating Class SE Liquor License – New Lenox Lion’s Club – 

Blizzard Dance
P  - Resolution #14-27 Authorizing Execution of a Contract Amendment with L&B 

Business Enterprises, Inc. LLC

Upon roll call, the vote was:

AYES: 6 Trustees Butterfield, Dye, Bowden, Madsen       
                                                            Tuminello and Mayor Baldermann                                      
ABSTAIN: 0

NAYS: 0

ABSENT: 1             Trustee Smith
The motion carried.

ORDER OF BUSINESS

Consideration of a Resolution #14-28 Establishing Criteria for Tax Refund 
Authorized by Resolution 08-33
Mayor Baldermann stated that he and the Board made a promise to refund a portion of 
the Village’s portion of the tax bill back to our residents which has been done for several 
years. This year the refund will be 65%. 



 3 October 27, 2014

Ms. Auchstetter reported the Village budgeted $1,000,000 for this year’s rebate. She went 
on to say the applications will be mailed out on October 30th and the refund checks will 
be mailed out in March. 

Mayor Baldermann briefly went over the criteria and stressed that the deadline to get 
your application and documents in is December 15th.

Motion to approve the resolution was made by Trustee Bowden and seconded by Trustee 
Dye

Upon roll call, the vote was:

AYES: 6 Trustees Butterfield, Dye, Bowden, Madsen       
                                                            Tuminello and Mayor Baldermann                                      
NAYS: 0

ABSENT: 1             Trustee Smith

The motion carried.

Consideration for Approval of a Request for Extension of Variances – Coldwell 
Banker/1425 East Lincoln Highway
Ms. Ellis reported back in March the Board approved three variances for this property; 
to reduce the required front yard setback, the interior parkway and also to eliminate the 
rear foundation area landscaping. She stated the zoning ordinance states that variances 
are granted for 180 days and during that period a building permit has to be obtained. 
Coldwell Banker has applied for the permit and continues to work with Staff in hopes the 
permit will be issued shortly but because they are set to expire. The ordinance allows the 
Board to grant another 180-day extension which is the request before the Board. 

Mayor Baldermann stated we are happy to see them rebuild in New Lenox. 

Motion to approve the extension was made by Trustee Tuminello and seconded by 
Trustee Dye

Upon roll call, the vote was:

AYES: 6 Trustees Butterfield, Dye, Bowden, Madsen       
                                                            Tuminello and Mayor Baldermann                                      
NAYS: 0

ABSENT: 1             Trustee Smith

The motion carried

Consideration for Approval of an Ordinances Authorizing Development Agreement 
and Granting Special Use for Preliminary P.U.D. Plat – Lincoln Station Apartments 
– 2nd Read



 4 October 27, 2014

Ms. Ellis reported that she will highlight the things that have changed since this was 
before the Board. She stated with respect to the development agreement, the Statuary 
is under contract by the developer and language has also been modified so say if the 
Statuary is demolished they are required to provide the Village with a Letter of Credit to 
secure the demolition and is not going to be required at the time of P.U.D. approval. With 
regards to the P.U.D. and the ordinance, the language fine tunes some numbers relating 
to the maximum square footage of the buildings and the maximum height. The height 
had to be increased to accommodate the change in grade. Ms. Ellis reported the other big 
change has to do with the transportation fee. When this was previously before the Board 
there was discussion about a contribution towards transportation fee for the relocation of 
the Metra Station. The developer discussed with Staff about a potential land donation, 
because as we go forward with the relocation of the Metra Station we don’t know if we 
will need to modify the parking and/or detention facilities. The ordinance states they will 
give us approximately an acre at the time of final P.U.D. plat approval, after that $25,000 
per building will be paid at the time a building permit is issued. Ms. Ellis stated with 
regards to the building code issue that was discussed the  COW meeting, the ordinance 
states that they will comply with the fire rating that is specified in our code but as was 
also discussed at the COW the building materials would not comply. At that time Ms. 
Ellis asked for Board questions. 

Richard Gammonly, on behalf of Lincoln Station Apartments, presented the Board with a 
slide show of other projects the team has been involved with. He said they use the highest 
construction standards. This is a Transit-Oriented Development due to the proximity 
to the Metra Station. Mr. Gammonly said the site was previously approved in 2007 for 
multi-family and thinks this is right use and location for this project. He said there will be 
minimal strain on the schools. He went on to discuss the demographics of New Lenox. 

Mr. Kennedy, PPK Architects, stated they started this project in March and have been 
working with the Planning Department to come up with the Site Plan. There are four 
similar buildings with each unit having ground floor parking for 46 cars with the rest of 
the cars parking outside on service lots. He went over the floor plans of the buildings. 
He said they tried to do a lot of articulation of the façade with two different brick colors 
accented with stone banding and some plaster accents at the top of the building.  

Mr. Gammonly said the project was designed as a luxury condominium project. He went 
over the features of the site and of each unit. He went on to go over the floor plan of the 
Clubhouse. Mr. Gammonly went over the tax revenue and noted this is not a Section 8 
project.

Trustee Madsen stated a lot of TOD’s (Transit Oriented Development) have commercial 
elements.

Mr. Gammonly stated this project will not have commercial because of the lack of 
visibility.

Trustee Tuminello asked if there is a possibility for them to come up with a plan for 
commercial. 



 5 October 27, 2014

Mr. Gammonly stated he doesn’t know if they will be able to lay the project out to 
incorporate commercial or that the Board will want this with the proposed retail on Route 
30.

Trustee Tuminello said Mr. Rendleman stated in his report that the developer did not 
intend to install the precast concrete in the floors and that the walls would not be masonry 
or USG walls. 

Mr. Rendleman said these are our minimum standards that we set for fire separation 
assemblies. It has to be either CMU, USG or Thermacrete. Mr. Rendleman stated that he 
had not seen the construction plans but in the conversations with the architect it appears 
that it will be that type of construction. 

Trustee Tuminello asked if they will not meet our codes but they will me the fire codes?

Mr. Rendleman said they will meet the building code for the two-hour fire separation 
with sprinklers. 

Trustee Bowden said her concerns are that because there is not a lot of commercial in 
walking distance, it will be necessary for the individuals to have transportation. This 
development will generate traffic and could potentially add over 300 vehicles to the 
area.  She added it’s a great building and a great thought process but for it to do what she 
thought it would do for the community, it’s a miss.  

Mr. Gammonly asked if Trustee Bowden had concerns with the parking.

Trustee Bowden answered the parking is fine, but she has concerns with the traffic flow 
in this location.

Mr. Gammonly stated this location was previously approved for multi-family with a 
higher density of units. He added this site is identified in the Comprehensive Plan for 
multi-family. 

Trustee Bowden said she may or may not have voted for that zoning. 

Trustee Dye stated that she’s a commuter and is a big proponent of diversity as many of 
the other Board members are. Trustee Dye said she’s not sure if this is the right fit for 
this development because she doesn’t want the big buildings to stick out. There aren’t 
any other big buildings in that area. She also expressed concerns about the parking saying 
Staff reports states this will require 1030 spaces but are trying to be creative and say 
on the weekends there would be additional parking in the Metra Lot. Trustee Dye said 
she doesn’t think there will be enough parking and trying to get out of the parking lot 
in the evening when the commuters are leaving will be a bottleneck. She said this is not 
in their best interest at this time. She said her other concern is if this is truly an upscale 
development why are they deviating from the Village Code as far as the wood and the 
concrete.

Mr. Gammonly said construction processes evolve. When talking about the wood we 
are talking about a highly specialized integrated system. The entire building is all stone 



 6 October 27, 2014

on the outside and the inside skeleton system is called podium construction, the base 
is solid concrete and above is wood. It has the same longevity, the same lifespan, the 
same structural integrity and is actually better in terms of thermal, insulation values, and 
adaptability.

Trustee Dye asked Mr. Rendleman what the difference is between what the developers 
are proposing and what the minimum is.

Mr. Rendleman stated when we amended out code it said if someone builds an R-2 
type use with attached single-family you had to do a concrete masonry unit. We since 
have amended this over the years because there were products that came up like USG 
area separation wall that can meet a two-hour fire rating and there’s another product 
called Thermacrete. The building code mainly sets minimum fire separation assemblies 
for tenant separation, corridors, etc. This type of unit will have to have two-hour fire 
separation and if they have sprinklers they can reduce this down to a one-hour fire 
seperation. Our code doesn’t allow this, it says it has to be a two-hour fire separation 
assembly and in addition it has to be one of the three materials. They will meet the 
building code they don’t meet the CMU or the USG or the Thermacrete. 

Trustee Dye asked about the wood. 

Mr. Rendleman said the wood is a fire retardant treated wood (FRTW) which is allowed 
by the code for Type-3 construction, we don’t address this in our code as long as it 
meeting International Code. We were looking at tenant separation assemblies.

Trustee Madsen expressed his concerns with the possibility of extra traffic on Prairie 
Street. He said the Metra Lot averages 800 cars a day and with the extra traffic it will be 
even harder than it is now to get out to the parking lot. 

Mr. Gammonly discussed briefly when the cars would be entering and leaving the 
proposed development. He asked the Board if they had any more concerns.

Mayor Baldermann said in response to the petitioners question, does any Board member 
have an issue with the deviation from our code for the building materials.

Trustee Bowden stated she would like to have more information on the building materials 
and still has concerns with the density. 

Trustee Tuminello stated his issue is with quality. He said it’s a beautiful building but 
there will be over 300 people with wood walls and floors separating them and added 
wood burns and concrete doesn’t. 

Mr. Gammonly asked if the Trustees would be satisfied and approve the project if 
they were to withdraw the wood methodology and meet the Village’s Code with its 
amendments.

Trustee Tuminello stated each Board member has their concerns. He said when this was 
added to the Comprehensive Plan the Board members took tours of other developments 
that were TOD’s and this project looks like an apartment complex and not a TOD. He 



 7 October 27, 2014

added an apartment complex is not bad but it’s not what they had in mind when this was 
added to the Comprehensive Plan. 

Trustee Madsen said one of his concerns is the density. 

Mr. Gammonly asked the Board if he could have a few minutes to talk with his partners. 

Motion to table the Lincoln Station Items (C)(D) to the end of the meeting was made by 
Trustee Tuminello and seconded by Trustee Nancy Dye

Upon voice vote the motion carried recording Trustee Smith as ABSENT.

Consideration of an Ordinance #2457 Authorizing the Execution of an 
Intergovernmental Cooperative Planning and Jurisdictional Boundary Line 
Agreement Between the Village of New Lenox and Mokena – 1st Read
Mr. Carroll reported on this is a twenty year agreement with Mokena. He said most of the 
areas along the boundary have already been built out. And went on to say this is the exact 
same agreement as the previous agreement except the one area that’s north of the Lincoln 
Way Central High School is already occupied by Mokena. There is also one section that 
is being utilized by the New Lenox Fire District that Mokena is providing sewer and 
water and have an agreement that they won’t force an annexation. 

Motion to waive second read was made by Trustee Bowden and seconded by Trustee 
Tuminello.  Upon voice vote, the motion passed recording Trustee Smith as ABSENT.

Motion to approve the Ordinance was made by Trustee Bowden and seconded by Trustee 
Butterfield.

Upon roll call, the vote was:

AYES: 6 Trustees Butterfield, Dye, Bowden, Madsen       
                                                            Tuminello and Mayor Baldermann                                      
NAYS: 0

ABSENT: 1             Trustee Smith

The motion carried

Consideration for Approval of an Ordinance Amending Comprehensive Plan – New 
Lenox Commons Master Plan – 1st Read
Ms. Ellis reported this was included in last year’s budget and the consultant that came 
before the Board with a draft of the plan and Staff had presented the plan at the COW 
meeting. The Plan Commission held a public hearing and unanimously recommend 
approval. At that time Ms. Ellis went through the phases. 

Mayor Baldermann said New Lenox is fortunate because of our geographical size and 
because of I-355 and I-80 and he wants to make sure this is done right. This community 
will be around a lot longer than the Board and we want to make sure that we set the table
for future Boards.



 8 October 27, 2014

At this time the Board brought back to the table Items C & D concerning Lincoln 
Station

Mr. Gammonly stated they believe this is a site for multi-family use and would like to 
develop it. They asked if they can have further discussion with the Board to see what it 
will take to make this project work.

Mayor Baldermann stated the amount of time that was invested in this project he asked 
for Board concurrence to bring this proposed development to a COW meeting for further 
discussion. The Board concurred.

Mr. Gammonly stated they agree to bring this back to a COW meeting for further 
discussion.

Consideration for Approval of a Resolution Demanding Payment of Letter of Credit 
Hibernia Unit 4
No action was taken on this item. 

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM VILLAGE OFFICIALS 

MAYOR 
Mayor Baldermann reported that the Village had recently negotiated an agreement 
with NuWay disposal for the Village’s waste disposal. Because there are residents that 
were putting garbage out with no toters or stickers all Village households will now 
have a toter. He went on to say there were several senior citizens that contacted the 
Village saying they don’t have much garbage and don’t need the 96-gallon toters. Mayor 
Baldermann was able to negotiate with NuWay that senior citizens will have a discounted 
rate if they agree to use the 35-gallon toter.

Mayor Baldermann reported on the leaf pick up.

VILLAGE ATTORNEY.
No report.

VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR 
Village Clerk Ruhl reported on the Early Voting. 

PAYROLL & DISBURSEMENTS 
Trustee Butterfield made the motion to approve our bi-monthly disbursements in the 
amount of $1,390,624.43.  In addition to this disbursement, approval is needed for bi-
weekly payroll in the amount of $336,437.53 and a monthly payroll in the amount of 
$6,426.67 paid on October 17, 2014.

Motion was seconded by Trustee Madsen. 

Upon roll call, the vote was:

AYES: 6 Trustees Butterfield, Dye, Bowden, Madsen       



 9 October 27, 2014

                                                            Tuminello and Mayor Baldermann                             
NAYS: 0

ABSENT: 1             Trustee Smith
The motion carried

QUESTIONS AND/OR COMMENTS FROM THE FLOOR 
Bill Walter, 1022 Grandview Drive, asked if Staff could put something in the water bills 
asking resident to contribute to the repair of the Veteran’s Memorial. 

Mayor Baldermann said there is information on the Village’s Facebook as well as 
Channel 6. He went on to say he will be appointing a committee to discuss repairing and 
restoring the Veteran’s Memorial.  

TRUSTEE COMMENTS

Trustee Tuminello
Trustee Tuminello had no comments.

Trustee Madsen
Trustee Madsen said have a safe and enjoyable Halloween.

Trustee Butterfield
Trustee Butterfield discussed the upcoming high school football games.

Trustee Dye
Trustee Dye congratulated Mayor Baldermann on Union School Districts recent receiving 
of the Illinois Award of Merit.

Trustee Dye informed the Board that she will miss two meetings in November for work 
related reasons.

Trustee Bowden
Trustee Bowden reported that trick-or-treat hours are 4:30p.m. – 7:00p.m.

Trustee Bowden reported on the upcoming Christmas in the Commons.

Trustee Smith
Absent.

ADJOURNMENT
Motion to adjourn the meeting made by Trustee Bowden and seconded by Trustee Dye. 
Upon voice vote, the motion carried unanimously. The Regular Meeting of the Village of 
New Lenox Board of Trustees held on October 27, 2014 adjourned at 8:41pm.



 10 October 27, 2014

________________________________
Laura Ruhl, Village Clerk


